
1 
 

 
Vermont Health Care Innovation Project  

Steering Committee Meeting Minutes 
 

Pending Committee Approval 
 
Date of meeting: Wednesday, June 29, 2016, 1:00pm-3:00pm, 4th Floor Conference Room, Pavilion Building, 109 State Street, Montpelier. 
Agenda Item Discussion Next Steps 
1. Welcome and 
Introductions; 
Minutes Approval 

Georgia Maheras called the meeting to order at 1:03PM. Chairman Gobeille also chairing. A quorum was not 
present. 

 

2. Core Team 
Update 

Project Update: 
• Georgia Maheras announced that we just received notification of Year 3 budget approval from our 

federal partners. We received notification of Year 2 budget approvals early last week.  
• Sustainability planning begins in July. Sustainability will be on agendas through the end of the year.  

 

3. VHCIP Work 
group plans 

Georgia Maheras presented work group agendas for July-December 2016 (Attachment 3). 
 
The group discussed the following: 

• Kim Fitzgerald commented she liked seeing the agendas in their entirety for the year. Georgia explained 
that long-term agenda planning and development is standard, but has not been well-shared in the past. 

• July: Anticipated vote on connectivity targets. 
• October: Work groups review Population Health Plan. 
• November: Work groups review Sustainability Plan. 

 

4. Frail Elders 
update 

Cy Jordan and the Frail Elders Project team presented on project findings. 
• For more information and full reports, please see Frail Elders Project website: 

www.vmsfoundation.org/elders.  
• The Green Mountain Care Board challenged Cy’s team to find actionable projects from their initial 

whitepapers. The Lab Collaboration grew out of hospital paper.  
• The team determined that the target population is broader than only frail elders. The team worked to 

identify ‘pre-frail’ characteristics with an ultimate focus on what is most important to patients.  

 

http://www.vmsfoundation.org/elders


2 
 

Agenda Item Discussion Next Steps 
• The study includes care providers (beyond hospital) and was a deep dive into two communities: Little 

Rivers service area (Bradford to St. Johnsbury, Wells River), and Gifford service area.  
o Julie Tessler asked who made up the providers in the study. Erica Garfin responded the 

providers from the two service areas included adult day programs, VNAs, and Area Agencies on 
Aging. She hopes future policy will be guided by the project findings. 

• Structured interviews, focus groups, literature search, provider interviews, policy/SMEs, and Medicare 
data were used to create quantifiable benchmarks.  

• Research was performed January-May. The research was compiled from May-June and four framing 
questions were identified: Who are our high-risk seniors? How will we measure success? How will we 
care for them? How will we pay for their care? 

• Steve Kappel provided an overview of the survey data. Finding quantitative datasets to support 
quantitative data was a challenge: 

1. Claims data could not be used because there is no ‘result’ or ‘contributing determinants’ to 
coincide with it. National survey data couldn’t be used directly so he merged Medicare Current 
Beneficiary Survey (MCBS) data with Vermont Household Health Insurance Survey data and 
aligned age, poverty level, dual status, & self-reported status. Counts in Vermont of particular 
illnesses were also noted. This created a baseline for comparison to other states regarding: 
functional limitations, long-term functional limitation, chronic conditions, and prevalence of 
chronic conditions. 

2. Dale Hackett asked if there was a correlation between increasing limited mobility and substance 
abuse/need. Steve responded that this has not yet been investigated. Cy clarified that in these 
cases, typically substance abuse is actually ‘unintentional’ misuse. 

3. Cy clarified that this had to be a benchmark analysis (rather than pre- and post-treatment 
results, since this population is not improving). Steve said that the goal was to monitor a slow 
slope of decline (rather than slope elimination). Cy also pointed out this benchmark slope 
comparison would need to age with each group. 

• Rick Barnett asked how mental health and substance abuse factored into the study since treatment 
services are generally not covered by Medicare? Erica responded there is a huge impact but she had no 
direct input on correlation. She said there was evidence of this impact in the two areas: Licensed 
psychologist services are reimbursed by Medicare, but geriatric psychiatric evaluations are hard to get 
due limited provider supply. One region added a geriatric mental health provider to their staff, which 
has resulted in improved access. Cy noted that the difference between patient need and total 
cost/utilization is not a direct correlation.  

• The study followed five different arms of research and reports with 10 focus questions.  



3 
 

Agenda Item Discussion Next Steps 
1. Who are our high risk seniors? Social determinants of health have a significant impact. 

Functional ability vs physical health. Originally assumed a screening would determine this, but 
that did not turn out to be the best approach.  

2. How will we measure success? There is no one index (more of a balanced scorecard of factors) – 
this requires benchmarks by age group since the target population is going to decline. The 
project team concluded that identifying participants on a steeper slope of decline as an 
indicator of problems.  

3. How to care for them? Primary care team, multi-disciplinary, integrated care coordinator.  
 Peter Cobb asked if this included services that are not currently covered (specifically 

home visit services)? Cy replied that there are some home visit items that are covered, 
but not all (such as services performed by community care worker, nurse). 

 Kim Fitzgerald asked how was SASH involved. Cy and Erica replied that the project team 
interviewed a SASH coordinator. She said the response from primary care providers was 
that they wanted to see patients in their own home instead of a hospital environment. 
Ex: Practice nurse could not go into patient’s homes. What are the needs of the seniors, 
where are mismatch, how can we advocate? 

 Julie Tessler asked for more information about the expertise of the care coordinator. 
Randy Messier responded that this varies from practice to practice (could be nurses, 
health care practitioner, social worker) depending on patient need. Care coordinators 
have the ability to help the care team to identify the right person for the care visit and 
help with patient follow-up. Different models have different types of people in this role.  

 Judy Peterson noted that Vermont is unique since every single citizen has access for NFP 
home health services. Due to the scarcity of resources, should we simply augment the 
model we currently have instead of adopting a new model? Perhaps invest in home care 
network for services Medicare won’t pay for? Cy commented that Josh Plavin will 
provide examples later in presentation. Josh added that this study doesn’t replace what 
is already occurring but should be leveraged.  

 Dale Hackett asked about transportation. Erica replied that transportation was identified 
as a major problem. Josh commented Vermont’s infrastructure would need to support 
transit enhancements. 

 Mike Hall stated that he is impressed with potential payment models, and 
comprehensive surveys to identify best practice. However, he commented that the 
integrated team description seems overly clinical and doesn’t anticipate integration with 
delivery systems in the community. He cautioned that communities should leverage 
existing resources and emphasize collaboration (ex: partnering with existing mental 
health providers instead of hiring their own). He expressed concerned that care diversity 
was still be controlled by the primary care organization. Cy explained that collaborative 



4 
 

Agenda Item Discussion Next Steps 
measures need to come before a new model. This will be an iterative process and these 
will be tests of change. Josh agreed that we cannot use history as a barometer moving 
forward. We need to recognize community needs and leverage services/resources that 
are already available. Randy agreed with this sentiment, and commented that we must 
build a medical home neighborhood, but we need interorganizational communication. 
Part of the work is to understand what levels of care are out there now. Cy commented 
that this study was originally about primary care so that flavors the presentation, but the 
data is based on needs.  

 Video: Available at www.vmsfoundation.org/elders.  
 Cy- these are examples of sustainable practices, not necessarily a recommendation.  

4. How to pay for it? Josh: this priority should be dependent upon the needs of the seniors.  
5. Sustainability 
Preview- Timeline 
and Contract 

Georgia Maheras led a discussion on the timeline for Sustainability Plan development:  
• The initial draft is due in November 2016. An updated draft incorporating stakeholder and work group 

feedback will be delivered in March 2017. The final draft will be delivered by the contractor to the State 
in mid-June 2017; the final draft is due to CMMI by June 30, 2017. 

o This timeline incorporates time for review and input from the new Governor’s administration 
which will begin in January.  

o We will convene an advisory group on early outline drafts, contractor support, etc. This team is 
invited to participate – let Georgia know. Dale Hackett expressed his interest.  

o Dale commented that when the original SIM application was submitted, 3 major initiatives were 
outlined, and asked which of those initiatives and projects are being sustained, and which are 
ending. Georgia responded that sustainability will be based on what worked, though  

o Kim Fitzgerald asked how project delays impact sustainability planning. Georgia clarified that the 
state budget process is different from the SIM budget process. If there are timeline impacts, 
they will be handled via budget adjustment.  

o Dale asked how legislative crossover in March will impact sustainability planning. Georgia 
responded that feedback has been clear on what works and what doesn’t; legislative crossover 
is unlikely to impact sustainability planning. 

• The apparent awardee for the sustainability planning support contract is Meyers & Stouffer.  

 

6. Public Comment, 
Next Steps, Wrap 
Up and Future 
Meeting Schedule  

There was no additional public comment. 
 
Next Meeting: Wednesday, July 27, 2016, 1:00pm-3:00, 4th Floor Conference Room, Pavilion Building, 109 State 
Street, Montpelier. 

 

 

http://www.vmsfoundation.org/elders















	Draft VHCIP Steering Committee Minutes 6 29 2016
	6-29-16 Steering Roll Call and Attendance

